
           
CITY OF TEXAS CITY

REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2021 - 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM -  CITY HALL

 1801 9th Ave. N.
Texas City, TX  77590

PLEASE NOTE: Public comments and matters from the floor are generally limited to 3 minutes in length. If you
would like to request to speak, please do so in advance of the meeting by filling out a Request To Address
Commission form. All in attendance are required to remove hats and/or sunglasses (dark glasses) during meetings
and to also silence all cell phones and electronic devices.

           
(1) ROLL CALL
 
(2) INVOCATION
 
(3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 
(4) REPORTS
 

(a) Lowry Fitness Center (Recreation and Tourism)
 
(5) PUBLIC HEARING
 

(a) A public hearing to hear citizens' opinions in favor of or in opposition to the City of Texas City's
proposed 2021/2022 Fiscal Year Budget.  (Finance)

 
(6) PUBLIC COMMENTS
 
(7) CONSENT AGENDA
 

(a) Approve City Commission Minutes for August 18, 2021 meeting. (City Secretary)
 

(b) Consider and take action on Resoluion No. 21-064, awarding RFP No. 2021-106 Janitorial Services for
Municipal Services. (Purchasing)

 
(c) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-065, authorizing the Mayor to enter into a one (1) year

Mutual Aid Agreement between the County of Galveston and the City of Texas City. (Fire Department)
 

(d) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-066, acknowledging the receipt of the 2020 Annual
Report for the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 1 (TIRZ 1) Board. (Management Services)

 
(e) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-067, approving a revised contract between Galveston



(e) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-067, approving a revised contract between Galveston
County Health District and the City of Texas City for water pollution control and abatement services.
(Public Works)

 
(8) REGULAR ITEMS
 

(a) Consider and take action, by record vote, on Ordinance No. 21-21, to adopt the City of Texas City's
2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget.  (Finance)

 
(9) COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS
 
(10) MAYOR'S COMMENTS
 
(11) ADJOURNMENT
 

NOTICE OF ANY SUBJECT APPEARING ON THIS AGENDA REGARDLESS OF HOW THE MATTER IS
STATED MAY BE ACTED UPON BY THE CITY COMMISSION.
I, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS NOTICE OF MEETING WAS POSTED
ON THE BULLETIN BOARDS AT CITY HALL, 1801 9TH AVENUE NORTH, TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, AT A PLACE
CONVENIENT AND READILY ACCESSIBLE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND ON THE CITY'S WEBSITE ON
AUGUST 28, 2021 PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M. AND REMAINED SO POSTED CONTINUOUSLY FOR AT LEAST 72
HOURS PRECEDING THE SCHEDULED TIME OF SAID MEETING.

______________________
RHOMARI LEIGH
CITY SECRETARY



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (a)           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2021  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, Management Services
Department: Management Services

Information
ACTION REQUEST (Brief Summary)
Lowry Fitness Center (Recreation and Tourism)

BACKGROUND
ANALYSIS
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report 



Welcome to the loWry Fitness center

DePArtment oF PArks, recreAtion & toUrism



Weight Room/Cardio Room/Aerobic Room/Spin Room

Aerobics Room

Weight Room

Cardio Room

Spin Room



MEMBERSHIP RATES & FEES

Annual Membership Resident Non-Resident

Adult (ages 15-54) $125.00 $200.00
Senior (ages 55+) $60.00 $135.00
Youth (ages 6-14 ) $75.00 $80.00

Daily Guest Pass Fees
Guest 
(rates apply to all ages)

$10.00

Annual Family Membership
Includes:

(2) adult memberships ages 15+ ages
(2) youth memberships 14 under ages

Resident ONLY
$315.00

Each additional youth member $40.00

Additional Fees
Annual Locker Rental (tall)
Annual Locker Rental (short)
Daily Lock Rental 
Replacement Membership
Badge

$75.00
$50.00
$  0.25
$10.00



3 YEAR MEMBERSHIP PROFILE

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

2018-2019 (1203 Members) 2019-2020 (685 Members) 2020-2021 (876 Members)

3-Year Span

3-Year Span



MEMBERSHIP PROFILE
Membership Breakdown

38%

1%45%

13%
3%

10/1/2018-9/30/2019 
(1203 Members)

Adult-463
Family-10
Seniors-540
Silver Sneakers-157
Youth-33

32%

0%

47%

18%

3%

10/1/2019-9/30/2020 
(685 Members)

Adult-219
Family-1
Seniors-322
Silver Sneakers-124
Youth-19

40%

1%
47%

10%
2%

10/1/2020-8/25/2021 
(925 Members)

Adult-365
Family-9
Seniors-438
Silver Sneakers-94
Youth-19



MEMBERSHIP PROFILE
Resident/Non-Resident Breakdown

91%

9%

10/1/2018-9/30/2019
(1203 Members)

Resident-1093 Non-Resident-110

88%

12%

10/1/2019-9/30/2020
(685 Members)

Resident-600 Non-Resident-85

82%

18%

10/1/2020-8/25/2021
(830 Members)

Resident-682 Non-Resident-148



CLASS AVERAGE ATTENDANCE

Classes Average
Class Instructor per week Attendance per class

Yoga/Pilates Lisa Hodges 2 15-20
Zumba® Kim Gerhardt 3 25
Silver Sneakers Classic Amberly Mobley 2 10-15
Silver Sneakers Boom Maria Ramos 2 15-20
Hi/Lo Impact Cardio Maria Ramos 1 20-25
Step Aerobics Maria Ramos 1 25
Aqua Fitness Gale Devona 3 30-35
Body Fit & Tone Gale Devona 2 20-25
Chair Fit Gale Devona 1 15-20
Aqua Pilates Amanda Fields 2 20-25
Spin & Trim Elva Vasquez 2 10
Spin & Trim Lauren Garcia 2 10



SilverSneakers® PROGRAM
• Founded in 1992

• More than 65 Medicare health plans
provide a gym membership to their
insured

• Today serves more than 12 million
eligible members

• The nation’s leading exercise program
designed for older adults, uses a unique
combination of fitness and social
activities to empower participants to take
control of their well-being.

• Over the last three years, we averaged
122 seniors signed up under the Silver
Sneakers Program.source: www.healthways.com/silversneakers.com

https://www.silversneakers.com/


Special Events
National Senior Health & Fitness Day (Partner with Senior Program) The 
common goal for the day is to help keep our elderly healthy and fit.
Coast Guard 5K Run (Host)
Annual Breast Cancer 5K Run/Walk
The goal of the event is to bring awareness to the fight, survivors, loved ones we 
have lost, and individuals currently battling breast cancer.
Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon
The goal of this event is to bring our members together by celebrating 
Thanksgiving.
Walk A Mile In My Shoes (CASA of Galveston County-Host) The event is a 
great way to show support for abused and neglected children.



2020 Virtual Breast Cancer 5K Run/Walk



Get Fit – Your new future starts today!

DePArtment oF PArks, recreAtion & toUrism

THANK YOU



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (5) (a)           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2021  
Public Hearing regarding 2021/2022 Budget
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST (Brief Summary)
Public hearing in support of or opposition to the City of Texas City's proposed 2021/2022
Fiscal Year Budget.

BACKGROUND
ANALYSIS
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Fiscal Impact



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (a)           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2021  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, Management Services
Department: Management Services

Information
ACTION REQUEST (Brief Summary)
Approve City Commission Minutes for August 18, 2021 meeting. (City Secretary) 

BACKGROUND
ANALYSIS
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Minutes 



REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

M I N U T E S 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 18, 2021 – 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM – CITY HALL

 
A Regular Called Meeting of the City Commission was held on Wednesday, AUGUST 18, 2021, at 5:00 P.M. in
the Kenneth T. Nunn Council Room in City Hall, Texas City, Texas. A quorum having been met, the meeting was
called to order at 5:08 p.m. by Mayor Dedrick Johnson, Sr.
 

               
1. ROLL CALL

Present: Dedrick Johnson, Mayor   
  Thelma Bowie, Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem   
  Kevin Yackly, Commissioner At-Large   
  Keith Henry, Commissioner District 1   

Absent: Felix Herrera, Commissioner District 2 
  Dorthea Jones Pointer, Commissioner District 3 
  Jami Clark, Commissioner District 4 

2. INVOCATION

Lead by Pastor Jervie Windom of Resonate Church.
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Mayor Pro-tem Thelma Bowie.
 
4. REPORTS
 

a. Street and Bridge (Public Works)

Jack Haralson, Director of Public Works, gave a PowerPoint presentation on street and bridge
procedures and repairs. 

 
b. Community Development (Code Enforcement)

David Zacherl, Fire Chief, gave a PowerPoint presentation on the procedures and results of
Code Enforcement and staff efforts. 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARING
 

a. 418 Southlake, LTD requests to rezone from “A” (Single-Family Residential) to “I” (Planned Unit
Development) to construct Southlake Subdivision – a Master Planned Community within the City
of Texas City. Being approximately 438-acres of undeveloped land. Located north of FM 517,
south of FM 646 and west of FM 3436.

Doug Kneupper, Consulting City Engineer, stated that 418 Southlake Ltd. is requesting to rezone
a portion of undeveloped land. The Zoning Commission previously approved the request. 

  



 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, Seconded by

Commissioner At-Large Kevin Yackly to close the public hearing. 

  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
6. PRELIMINARY ZONING APPROVAL
 

a. Consider and take action on request by 418 Southlake, LTD  to rezone from “A” (Single-Family
Residential) to “I” (Planned Unit Development). Being approximately 438-acres of undeveloped
land. Located north of FM 517, south of FM 646 and west of FM 3436.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, Seconded by

Commissioner At-Large Kevin Yackly 

  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS
 
8. CONSENT AGENDA

Motioned by Commissioner At-Large Kevin Kackly, seconded by Commissioner At-Large
Thelma Bowie, to approve Consent Agenda items a, b, c, d, e, f, g, h, and i.

 
a. Approve City Commission Minutes for the August 4, 2021 meeting. (City Secretary)   

 
  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-056, Emergency Declaration of Disaster.

(Emergency Management)
  

 
  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-057, awarding an annual contract for Bid No.

2021-104 Oils and Lubricants Annual Contract. (Public Works)
  

 
  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-058, approving a development for 418

Southlake, Ltd. (Engineering & Planning)
  

 
  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
e. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-059, consenting to the annexation of land into

MUD #53. (Engineering & Planning)
  

 
  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
f. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-060, approving and awarding Bid No, 2021-105   



f. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-060, approving and awarding Bid No, 2021-105
Personnel Protective Equipment, Fire Hose, Nozzles, and related equipment annual contract.
(Purchasing)

  

 
  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
g. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-061, authorizing payment of windstorm

insurance premium to Victor Insurance Managers Inc. (Finance)
  

 
  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
h. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-062, authorizing the City to enter into a Utility

Services Agreement between Texas City, GCMUD 53, and 418 Southlake, LTD. (Developer).
(Engineering and Planning)

  

 
  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
i. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-063, approving the Moore Memorial Public

Library Strategic Plan to take effect October 1, 2021, through September 30, 2024. (Library)
  

 
  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
9. REGULAR ITEMS
 

a. Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 21-20, amending the fiscal year 2020-2021 budget
to accept and appropriate the Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery
Mitigation funds for drainage improvements. (Finance)

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, Seconded by

Commissioner At-Large Kevin Yackly 

  Vote: 4 - 0 CARRIED

 
10. COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS

Commissioner Bowie and Commissioner Yackly thanked Thomas Munoz, Director of
Emergency Management, for his service to the City.

All-City staff present echoed the sentiment of the Commissioners.

Laura Boyd, Finance Director, stated that a copy of the 2021-2022 FY budget is in the City Hall
Lobby for viewing.

Dennis Harris, Director of Recreation and Tourism, stated that the pool is now only operational
on weekends. 

 
11. MAYOR'S COMMENTS



11. MAYOR'S COMMENTS

Mayor Johnson stated that we will continue to social distance and utilize electronic meeting
methods, as much as legally possible, until there is no longer a Covid spike. 

Mayor Johnson also echoed the sentiments of the Commissioners and City Staff and wished
Thomas Munoz the best of successes.

 
12. ADJOURNMENT
 
Having no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie made a MOTION to ADJOURN at 6:20 p.m.; the motion
was SECONDED by Commissioner At Large Kevin Yackly. All present voted AYE. MOTION CARRIED.

  
 ______________________________
 DEDRICK JOHNSON, SR., MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Date Approved:



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (b)           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2021  
RFP 2021-106 Janitorial Services for Municipal Facilities
Submitted For: Debbie Gurka, Administration  Submitted By: Debbie

Gurka,
Administration

Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST (Brief Summary)
Approve and award RFP # 2021-106 Janitorial Services for Municipal Services to Ambassador
Services, LLC. 

BACKGROUND
On Friday, August 6, 2021 bid packets were mailed to area vendors. Proposals were opened
and scored on Tuesday, August 24, 2021. A bid tabulation is attached for your review.

ANALYSIS
The Purchasing Office received a total of four (4) bids and two of those bids did not meet the
required bid guarantee of a Casher's Check or a Bidder's Bond in the amount of five percent
(5%) of the total bid price as stated in Section IV, 4.13 of the RFP.

One of the two bids did not submit the bid in a sealed envelope as stated on the Notice for
Bidders. Both bids were higher in cost than the two (2) qualified proposers.

After team reviewing and scoring the remaining two (2) qualified proposals, it is the
recommendation of the Purchasing Department to award the Janitorial Service Contract to
Ambassador Services, LLC., and the Mayor is authorized to execute a contract on behalf of
City Commission.

Bid Tabulation attached.

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution 
Bid Tabulation 



RESOLUTION NO. 21-064

A RESOLUTION APPROVING RFP NUMBER 2021-106 JANITORIAL 
SERVICES FOR MUNICIPAL SERVICES; AND PROVIDING THAT 
THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, the bids packets were made available to local area vendors for RFP No. 
2021-106 Janitorial Services for Municipal Services; and

WHEREAS, proposals were opened and scored on August 14, 2021, and based on the 
recommendation of the Purchasing Department, PRF No. 2021-106 Janitorial Services for 
Municipal Services should be awarded to Ambassador Services, LLC for the prices bid. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby awards 
PRF No. 2021-106 Janitorial Services for Municipal Services to Ambassador Services, LLC.

SECTION 2: That the Mayor or designee is hereby authorized to enter into a contract 
with Ambassador Services, LLC for the respective unit prices bid in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of September 2021.

____________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________ _________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



RFP 2021-106 JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR MUNICIPAL FACILITIES 

LOCATION AMERICAN JANITORIAL SERVICES AMBASSADOR SERVICES 

Monthly Yearly 
Monthly Yearly 

City Hall $1,538.00 $18,456.00 $1,223.99 $14,687.88 

Criminal Justice Center $2,992 .00 $35,910.00 $2,594.71 $31,136.52 

Moore Memorial Library $2,719.00 $32,634.00 $2,288.96 $27,467.52 

Fire Adm inistration Building $516.00 $6,196.20 $941.72 $11,300.64 

City Hall Annex $903.00 $10,836.00 $737.15 $8,845.80 

Texas City Museum $829.00 $9,954.00 $873.58 $10,482.96 

Emergency Management $304.00 $3,654.00 $173.62 $2083.44 

Public Works/ Engineering $341.00 $4,095.00 $253 .24 $3,038.88 

Sanitation Service Center (Biosphere) $236.00 $2,835.00 $139.95 $1,672.20 

Uti lity & Fleet Service $551.00 $6,615 .00 $387.88 $4,654.56 

Pol ice Service Center $199.00 $2,394.00 $45.20 $542.40 

Police Substation $199.00 $2457.00 $51.49 $617.88 

The Davison Home $236.00 $2,835 .00 $324.96 $3,899.52 

The Engineers Cottage $157 .00 $1,890.00 $118.93 $1,427.16 

The Moore Home $157.00 $1,890.00 $103.11 $1237.32 

VENDOR CALCULATIONS $11,882.00 $142,584.00 $10,257.89 $123,095.76 

CORRECTED CALCULATIONS 

WRITTEN FIGURES IN WORDS X 12 $142.624.20 $123,086.04 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (c)           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2021  
Mutual Aid agreement between County of Galveston and the City of Texas City (Fire Department)
Submitted For: David Zacherl, Fire Department 
Submitted By: Cindy Baker, Fire Department
Department: Fire Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST (Brief Summary)
Consider and take action authorizing the Mayor to execute a one year agreement between
the County of Galveston and the City of Texas City for Mutual Aid. (Fire Department)

BACKGROUND
New annual agreement replacing the 2020/21 Agreement between the parties.

ANALYSIS
City to provide mutual aid to unincorporated areas of Galveston County for $22,500.00 from
the Commissioners Court.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED
None 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 21-065

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF GALVESTON, TEXAS AND 
THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, FOR MUTUAL AID; AND PROVIDING 
THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, Texas, wishes to formalize a FY21/22 Mutual Aid Agreement 
between the County of Galveston and the City of Texas City, for mutual aid; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 352 of the Local Government Code, “County Fire Department” and 
Chapter 791 of the Government Code, “Interlocal Cooperation Act,” provides authority that the 
Commissioners’ Court may contract the governing body of a municipality to provide protection services to 
locations outside the municipalities; and

WHEREAS, citizens residing within the unincorporated areas of the County of Galveston, 
surrounding City of Texas City, city limits are in need of obtaining the services of the City of Texas City to 
assist them in time of need; and

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City is willing to make its fire protection services available to 
unincorporated areas of the County of Galveston. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas hereby approves the 
FY21/22 Mutual Aid Agreement between the County of Galveston and the City of Texas City, and the 
Mayor is authorized to execute the FY21/22 Mutual Aid Agreement, in the same or similar format attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after it passage and 
adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of September 2021.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas



----------------------------------------------------------------------------------
L:Resolution No. 09-118-Approve Two Ambulance Chassis

2

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



1 
 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF GALVESTON  § 
 

CONTRACT 

This Contract is made by and between the County of Galveston, Texas, acting by and 
through its Commissioners’ Court hereinafter called “County” and the City of Texas City, Texas, 
acting by and through its City Commission, hereinafter called “City” or “recipient”. 

 Whereas, Chapter 352 of the Texas Local Government Code, “County Fire Protection” 
and Chapter 791 of the Government Code, “Interlocal Cooperation Act,” provides authority that 
the Commissioners’ Court may contract the governing body of a municipality to provide fire 
protection services to locations outside of the municipalities; and 

 Whereas, citizens residing within unincorporated areas of the County surrounding the 
City’s city limits are in need of obtaining the services of the City to assist them in time of need; 
and 

 Whereas, the City is willing to make its fire protection services available to 
unincorporated areas of the County. 

 Now, therefore, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants expressed herein it is 
agreed as follows: 

1. To assist the various communities located in the unincorporated areas surrounding the 
City’s city limits, the County agrees to pay the City to be on call and make fire protection 
runs into the unincorporated areas of Galveston Count the sum of TWENTY-TWO 
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED AND NO/ 100 ($22,500.00). Payment of this sum shall 
be made following the acceptance and execution of this Contract by both parties. 

2. City agrees to make reasonable efforts to respond to requests for fire protection services in 
the unincorporated areas of the County surrounding the City’s city limits, regardless of the 
source of the request. 

3. City agrees to keep a record of any runs made in response to an area in the unincorporated 
portions of the County, and to submit, not later than July 21, 2022, a report to the County 
Commissioners’ Court advising the Court of the runs made to unincorporated areas of the 
County during the period of July 15, 2021 to July 14, 2022.  For each run, the City will 
report the date and time of the run, the distance travelled, the number of personnel who 
responded, and all expenses incurred by the City as determined by the most recent City 
financial audit in making the reported runs.  The County and City acknowledge that the 
City’s run expenses will not impact the amount payable under this Contract. 



2 
 

4. It is expressly agreed and understood between the parties that the County shall have no 
right at any time to supervise, manage, direct or control the City and its members in the 
performance of their services.  The City shall totally decide and be responsible for the 
manner, means and methods by which they operate. 

5. It is further agreed and understood between the parties that in accordance with §352.004 
of the Local Government Code, V.T.C.A., the acts of any person who, in the act of carrying 
out the County’s authority to provide fire protection under this agreement, furnishes fire 
protection to a county resident who lives outside the municipalities in the County, including 
the act of person who is a regular employee or fire fighter of a municipality, is considered 
to be the act of an agent of the County. 

6. It is further agreed that the City is not liable for the acts of its employee in fighting fires 
outside the City under this Contract.  However, it is acknowledged that the City will 
continue any responsibilities it may have to provide workers’ compensation, to any 
employees who provide firefighting services under this Contract.   

7. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to waive any provision contained within 
Chapter 74 of the Civil Practice and Remedies Code of the State of Texas, commonly 
known as the Good Samaritan Law. 

8. To the extent permitted by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, City agrees to 
indemnify and save harmless the county of Galveston, its agents, Commissioners, Boards, 
Officers and employees from any and all suits, actions, or claims of any character, type or 
description brought or made for or on account of any injuries or damages received or 
sustained by any person or persons arising out of or occasioned by the acts of the Fire 
Department, its members, deputies, agents or employees. 

9. During the term of this Contract, the City agrees to:  

a) Maintain membership in the Galveston County Firefighters Association, 

b) Comply with the Texas Commission on Fire Protection (TCFP) and any other 
applicable Federal and State regulatory agency, and submit an annual letter stating 
such compliance to the Galveston County Fire Fighters Association. 

10. Equal Employment Opportunity - The City agrees that it shall not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, 
disability, genetic information, or veteran status.   Such action shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following:  employment; upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The recipient agrees to post notices, 
which set forth the provisions of this non-discrimination section, in conspicuous places 
available to employees or applicants for employment and will, in all solicitation or 
advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the recipient, state that all qualified 
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, 



3 
 

religion, national origin, sex, disability, genetic information, or veteran status.  

11. Drug-Free Workplace – the City shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Drug-
Free Work Place Act of 1988 (Public Law 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. § 8102, 
et seq.) and implementing regulations there under and maintain a drug-free work 
environment. 

12. Americans With Disabilities Act – the City shall comply with all applicable terms, 
conditions, and requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Public Law 
101-136) and implementing regulations there under. 

13. Nondiscrimination – the City acknowledges and agrees that neither it nor its subcontractors 
shall discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, 
genetic information, or veteran status.  Respondent and its subcontractors shall comply 
with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination.  These laws include, but are not 
limited to: 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
The Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 503 
The Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972  
The Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 

14. This Contract shall begin effective upon the execution of this document by both parties and 
shall terminate on September 30, 2022.  

15. This Contract constitutes the only agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes any prior 
understanding or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the within 
subject matter.  The City disclaims any reliance on representations by the County that are 
not expressly set out in this Contract. 

16. In the event any portion of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable, the unenforceable 
portion shall be construed in accordance with applicable law as nearly as possible to reflect 
the original intention of the parties. The remainder of the provisions shall remain in full 
force and effect.  

17. Neither party's failure to enforce strict performance of any provisions of this Agreement 
shall be construed as a waiver of any provision or right.  Neither the course of conduct 
between the parties nor trade practice shall act to modify any provision of this Agreement.  

18. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Texas and venue shall lie in Galveston County.  

19. Each signatory to this Agreement certifies that he/she has been authorized by their entity 
to execute this Agreement. 

20. This Agreement is being executed with multiple originals signed by both parties. 

 



4 
 

GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

      By:  _______________________________ 
             Mark Henry, 
             County Judge 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________   
Dwight D. Sullivan,      
County Clerk       
       CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS 
 
 
      By:  _____________________________ 
       City Mayor     
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (d)           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2021  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, Management Services
Department: Management Services

Information
ACTION REQUEST (Brief Summary)
Consider and take action on Resolution No. 21-066, acknowledging the receipt of the 2020
Annual Report for the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 1 (TIRZ 1) Board. (Management
Services)

BACKGROUND
ANALYSIS
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 



































RESOLUTION NO. 21-066

A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING THE RECEIPT OF THE 2020
ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT 
ZONE NUMBER ONE (TIRZ 1) BOARD; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS 
RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, the 2020 Annual Report for Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One 
(“TIRZ 1”) was reviewed and approved by the Board; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission must acknowledge receipt of the TIRZ 1 report so 
that it can be forwarded to the Texas Comptroller and Office of the Attorney General, as required 
under Tax Code §311.016; and

WHEREAS, after acknowledging the receipt of the report, it must also be forwarded to 
College of the Mainland and Galveston County for their records.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
acknowledges the receipt of the 2020 Annual Report for Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone 
Number One (“TIRZ 1”), as set out on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein for 
all intents and purposes.

SECTION 2 That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of September 2021.

_____________________________
Dedrick Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________________    
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (e)           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2021  
FY2022 Contract for Water Pollution Control and Abatement
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST (Brief Summary)
Approve a revised contract between the Galveston County Health District and the City of
Texas City for water pollution control and abatement services.

BACKGROUND
The City of Texas City is  a member of the Galveston County Health District  and responsible
for the quality of the water within it's jurisdiction, and  has elected to contract for water quality
services with the Galveston County Health District.

The contract and cover letter are attached for your review.

ANALYSIS
It is the recommendation of the Utilities Department that the City of Texas City pay the
Performing Party an annual fee of $36,164.00 for the services set forth in the attached
agreement and that the Mayor be authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the City
Commission.

Thank you.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Resolution 



July 12, 2021 

Mr. Corbin Ballast  
Public Utilities Director 
City of Texas City 
911 Highway 146 North 
Texas City, Texas 77590 
 
Dear Mr. Ballast: 
 
Enclosed please find the FY2022 Water Pollution Control and Abatement Contract between the City of 
Texas City and the Galveston County Health District. Should you wish to propose revisions to this 
Contract, please notify me by phone or via email.  Please note that the total amount of the Contract has 
increased for the 2022 fiscal year. 

Following your review and approval, please have your municipality’s designated official sign the contract 
and remit an original copy by mail to: Galveston County Health District, Environmental Services, PO 
Box 939, La Marque, Texas 77568 or via email to kwilson@gchd.org 

Once we receive the signed original copy, we will fully execute the contract and return a copy for your 
records. Should you have any additional questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me at 409-938-
2310.  

Sincerely, 

 

 
Katie Wilson 
Water Pollution Services Manager 
Galveston County Health District 
 

/KW 

Enclosures 

Public Health Services · Coastal Health & Wellness · Emergency Medical Services · Animal Resource Center 
The Galveston County Health District (GCHD) is the local public health agency for Galveston County, Texas.  

GCHD provides services and programs that protect the everyday health and well-being of Galveston County. 
P.O. Box 939 La Marque, Texas 77568 • (409) 938-7221 

www.gchd.org 
 

mailto:kwilson@gchd.org


























RESOLUTION NO. 21-067

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A 
REVISED CONTRACT WITH THE GALVESTON COUNTY HEALTH 
DISTRICT FOR WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AND ABATEMENT 
SERVICES; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME 
EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act of the State of Texas provides that political 
subdivisions of the State may contract or agree with another local government to perform governmental 
functions and services in accordance with the provisions of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Galveston County Health District and the City of Texas City have agreed to 
contract water pollution control and abatement services in the amount of $36,164.00; and

WHEREAS, the Galveston County Health District organized the Water Pollution and Abatement 
Control program in 1972 and is charged with performing water quality monitoring and pollution abatement 
activities for Galveston County and its contracted political subdivisions, and is supported through the county 
general fund and contracted political subdivision contributions; and

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City is a member of the Galveston County Health District and 
responsible for the quality of the water within its jurisdiction and has elected to contract for water quality 
services with the Galveston County Health District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby approves the
revised contract for Water Pollution Control and Abatement Services with the Galveston County Health 
District.     

SECTION 2: That the Mayor is authorized to execute a revised agreement in substantially the 
same form as attached as Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of September 2021.

______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas



ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_________________________ ________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG   Ord 14-21           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2021  
Approve 2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST (Brief Summary)
Approve adoption of the 2021 - 2022 Fiscal Year Budget.

BACKGROUND
ANALYSIS
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO. 21-21

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2021 - 2022 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
THEREWITH; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DISPENSING WITH 
THE REQUIREMENT FOR READING THIS ORDINANCE ON THREE (3) 
SEPARATE DAYS; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 
BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION 
AND PUBLICATION BY CAPTION ONLY IN THE OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER OF 
THE CITY.

WHEREAS, Chapter 102 of the Texas Local Government Code provides that a municipality 
must prepare and adopt a municipal budget to cover the proposed expenditures of the municipal 
government for the succeeding year; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 102 also requires a public hearing on the proposed budget and provides 
that the governing body of the municipality take action on the proposed budget at the conclusion of the 
public hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 1, 2021, in accordance with Chapter 102 
and, after public hearing, vote on adoption of the budget was scheduled for September 1, 2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission, by record vote, hereby adopts the 2021 - 2022 Fiscal 
Year Budget, a copy of which is on file in the permanent records of the City.

SECTION 2: That the City Commission hereby directs that the final budget as adopted, and any 
subsequent amendments, be filed with the City Secretary and the County Clerk of the County of 
Galveston, as provided by State law and the City Charter.

SECTION 3: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: That it is further provided that, in the event any section, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or part of this Ordinance shall be for any reason adjudged by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect, invalidate, or impair the remainder of this 
Ordinance.

SECTION 5: That the Charter requirement for reading this Ordinance on three (3) separate days 
has been dispensed by a majority vote of the City Commission.



SECTION 6: That the Public Hearing for the 2021 - 2022 Fiscal Year Budget was held on 
Wednesday, September 1, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. and a vote on the adoption of the 2021 - 2022 Fiscal 
Year Budget was scheduled at that time for Wednesday, September 1, 2021.

SECTION 7: That this Ordinance shall be finally passed and adopted on the date of its 
introduction and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption and publication by caption
only in the official newspaper of the City.

PASSED and ADOPTED this 1st day of September 2021.

_________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________ _________________________ 
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney


	Agenda
	4.a.__6040
	    Staff Report
	Slide Number 1
	Weight Room/Cardio Room/Aerobic Room/Spin Room
	MEMBERSHIP RATES & FEES
	3 YEAR MEMBERSHIP PROFILE
	MEMBERSHIP PROFILE�Membership Breakdown
	MEMBERSHIP PROFILE�Resident/Non-Resident Breakdown
	CLASS AVERAGE ATTENDANCE
	SilverSneakers® PROGRAM
	Special Events
	2020 Virtual Breast Cancer 5K Run/Walk
	Slide Number 11

	5.a._Public Hearing regarding 2021_2022 Budget
	7.a.__6039
	    Minutes
	7.b._RFP 2021-106 Janitorial Services for Municipal Facilities
	    Resolution
	    Bid Tabulation
	7.c._Mutual Aid agreement between County of Galveston and the City of Texas City (Fire Department)
	    Resolution
	    Exhibit A
	7.d.__6035
	    Exhibit A
	    Resolution
	7.e._FY2022 Contract for Water Pollution Control and Abatement
	    Exhibit A
	    Exhibit B
	    Resolution
	7.e._Approve 2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget
	    Ordinance

